
The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 19, 2013) Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
FEBRUARY 19, 2013 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 
 

Mission Statement 
 

The City of Newberg serves its citizens, promotes safety, and maintains a healthy community. 
 

Vision Statement 
 

Newberg will cultivate a healthy, safe environment where citizens can work, play and grow in a friendly, 
dynamic and diverse community valuing partnerships and opportunity. 

 
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak 
for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3035 authorizing a contract with Baldwin 
General Contracting, Inc. for construction of the Children’s Library Remodel Project. (Pgs. 3-6)

 
2. Consider a motion approving the January 22, 2013, City Council meeting minutes. (Pgs. 7-12)

 
VII. CONTINUED BUSINESS 
 

Consider a motion postponing the Ninth Street Vacation hearing date to April 15, 2013. (Pgs. 13-14)
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3036 accepting the Engineer’s Report and 
setting a public hearing date to consider formation of the College Street LID. (Pgs. 15-48)

 

Page 1



The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 19, 2013) Page 2 of 2 

2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3034 approving reallocation of funds from 
contingencies for payroll increases. (Pgs. 49-52)

 
IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Recorder’s Office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please 
dial 711. 
 
 
 
Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the 
agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder. The exception is land use hearings, which requires a specific public 
hearing process.  The City Council asks written testimony be submitted to the City Recorder before 4:30 p.m. on the preceding 
Wednesday.  Written testimony submitted after that will be brought before the Council on the night of the meeting for consideration 
and a vote to accept or not accept it into the record. 

 

Page 2



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2013-3035 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 19, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution   XX    Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2013-3035 

SUBJECT:  A resolution authorizing the city 
manager to enter into a contract with Baldwin 
General Contracting, Inc. for the construction of the 
Children’s Library Remodel Project. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: James (Jay) O. Harris 
Dept.: PW Engineering 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Adopt Resolution No. 2013-3035, authorizing the city manager to enter into a contract with Baldwin 
General Contracting, Inc. for the construction of the Children’s Library Remodel Project. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
The existing 1,760 square foot children’s library constructed in the mid 1980’s has limited space and is in 
need of updating and renovation. This project will remodel the existing space and expand the children’s 
library into an existing 1,539 square foot area which is currently used for storage.  Upon completion of the 
project, the new 3,299 square foot children’s library will be nearly double in size to serve the future needs of 
the community. 
 
On July 5, 2011, the city manager entered into a professional services agreement with DJ Architecture to 
provide the design services for this project.  The design was completed in December of 2012, and the project 
was advertised for construction.  The DJ Architecture design improvement plan is attached as Exhibit “A”.   
 
On January 16, 2013, seven bids for the construction of the Children’s Library Remodel Project were 
received with bid prices ranging from a low of $176,000.00 to a high of $209,500.00.  The lowest responsive 
bidder was Baldwin General Contracting, Inc., with a bid of $176,000.00.  The project Architect estimated 
the construction cost to be approximately $215,000.00 in June of 2011. 
 
Other elements of the construction budget include permit fees, planning review fees, asbestos studies, special 
inspections, and a construction contingency.  Approximately $16,000.00 will be needed to modify the 
existing HVAC system.  The city on-call HVAC contractor, Alliant Systems, is very familiar with the 
existing HVAC system at the library and will be contracted separate from the Baldwin General Contracting 
Inc. contract to complete the improvements to the existing systems. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
To date, a total of $250,000.00 has been raised by the community through various fundraising events, 
donations, and grants.  Account number 23-3110-610000 in the fiscal year 2012-2013 budget is used to 
allocate funds for this project. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
The proposed renovation will replace the dated existing Children’s Library improvements and increase 
the available space by 47% for additional children’s materials, programming, and activities. 

Page 3



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2013-3035 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3035 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT WITH BALDWIN GENERAL CONTRACTING, INC. FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE CHILDREN’S LIBRARY REMODEL  

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. To date, a total of $250,000.00 has been raised by the community through various fundraising events, 

donations, and grants.   
 
2. On July 5, 2011, the city manager entered into a professional services agreement with DJ 

Architecture to provide the design services for this project.  The design was completed in December 
of 2012, and the project was advertised for construction.   

 
3. On January 16, 2013, seven bids for the construction of the Children’s Library Remodel Project were 

received with the lowest responsive bidder being Baldwin General Contracting, Inc., with a bid of 
$176,000.00. 

 
4. The project is included in the fiscal year 2012-2013 budget and is fully funded by the various 

fundraising events, donations, and grants. 
 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City Council, acting as Contract Review Board for the City, does hereby authorize the city 
manager to enter into a construction contract in an amount of $176,000.00 with Baldwin General 
Contracting Inc., the low bid contractor for the Children’s Library Remodel Project. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: February 20, 2013. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 19th day of February, 2013. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 21st day of February, 2013. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Page 4



EXHIBIT "A" TO 
RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3035

Page 5



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 6



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 19, 2013 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 
SUBJECT:    Approve the January 22, 2013, City 
Council Meeting minutes. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Norma Alley, City Recorder 
Dept.:  Administration  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Approve City Council minutes for preservation and permanent retention in the City’s historical records. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City of Newberg City Council held a public meeting and minutes were recorded in text.  In accordance 
to Oregon State Records Management law, the City of Newberg must preserve these minutes in hard copy 
form for permanent retention. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
None. 

Page 7



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (January 22, 2013) Page 1 of 4 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
JANUARY 22, 2013 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 
 
A work session was held prior to the meeting.  A presentation was given by Dave Huber and Kirk Duncan from 
Waste Management (WM) regarding glass recycling.  All Councilors and the Mayor were present; no action 
was taken and no decisions were made. 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Mayor Andrews presented Ms. Becky Green with 
a plaque recognizing her service of 35 years to the city of Newberg.  
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Denise Bacon Ryan Howard 
 Bart Rierson  Lesley Woodruff Mike Corey 
 Stephen McKinney  
 
Staff Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Leah Griffith, Library Director Brian Casey, Chief of Police 
 Les Hallman, Fire Chief Joseph Falbey, IT Support Specialist 
 Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director  Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director 
 Jay Harris, City Engineer Jessica Nunley, Acting City Recorder  
  Mandy Dillman, Minutes Recorder   
 
Others Present: Dave Huber, WM District Manager, Kirk Duncan, WM Senior District Manager, 
 Becky Green, Sid Friedman, Lee Does, Vicki Shepherd 
  
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, city manager, reported about a fundraiser being held for Newberg Music on January 27th.  
Newberg Music is adjacent to Critter Cabana, which suffered a fire last month. Newberg Music is in need of 
some repairs as well due to smoke damage sustained from the fire.  The safety committee is receiving a 
wellness grant which will be used for the city health and wellness fair, among other things.  Fiscal year 2013-
2014 budgeting will begin soon and budget committee meetings will begin at the end of April.   
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

 
Mayor Andrews opened and closed public comments as there was no one to testify. 
 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3032 revising the Newberg Public Library 
Fine and Fee Schedule.  

Page 8



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (January 22, 2013) Page 2 of 4 

 
2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3030 authorizing the city to purchase property 

located at 2716 Wynooski Road.  
 

MOTION:    Howard/Bacon adopting Resolution No. 2013-3032 revising the Newberg Public Library Fine 
and Fee Schedule and adopting Resolution No. 2013-3030 authorizing the city to purchase property located at 
2716 Wynooski Road. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 
4. Consider a motion approving the December 17, 2012, City Council meeting minutes.  
 

The December 17, 2012, minutes are postponed to the February 4th, 2012, City Council meeting.  
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2013-2759 adopting a revised population forecast 
for the Newberg Urban Area. 

 (Legislative Hearing) 
TIME – 7:09 PM 
 
Mr. Barton Brierley, planning and building director, presented the staff report accompanied by a PowerPoint 
presentation (see official meeting packet for full report).   
 
Councilor Ryan Howard commented the estimate is a conservative number and is not assuming any radical high 
or low changes.  He asked if the conservative number was more likely toward the lower end.  Mr. Brierley 
replied it was not clear and there was only one number for the conservative forecast which means they may not 
be assuming a lot of changes in population trends in the future.   
 
Staff recommends adopting Ordinance No. 2013-2759. 
 
MOTION: McKinney/Rierson adopting Ordinance No. 2013-2759 adopting a revised population forecast 
for the Newberg Urban Area. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 
VIII. CONTINUED BUSINESS 
 

Consider a motion to endorse a letter to the Yamhill County Commissioners requesting they 
adopt the South Industrial UGB amendment. 

TIME – 7:22 PM 
 
Mr. Barton Brierley, planning and building director, presented the staff report accompanied by a PowerPoint 
presentation (see official meeting packet for full report).   
 
Councilor Denise Bacon stated she believes presenting the plan in two pieces per the Commissioner’s request 
sends mixed messages.  She feels it shows the other acres are not as important if they are absent from the 
proposal and make it feel as though the city is not fully committed.   
 
Ms. Vicki Shepherd, who works for one of the largest hazelnut orchards in Oregon, came to support 1000 
Friends of Oregon and the letter they wrote to the city asking them to protect the farmland from the UGB.   
 
Mr. Sid Friedman, testifying as a member of Friends of Yamhill County and 1000 Friends of Oregon, said he 
sent a letter to the council urging them to reconsider and amend the UGB proposal.  He feels the city is not 
using proper site characteristics, is being inflexible, and their interests do not allow for compromise.  He 

Page 9



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (January 22, 2013) Page 3 of 4 

thanked the council for amending the population forecast to reflect the county’s adopted forecast, but expressed 
his disappointment in their rejection of amending the UGB proposal to remove the farmland east of the 
highway.  Mr. Friedman remembers last spring when 1000 Friends of Oregon met with city members to discuss 
alternatives to the UGB, and the council agreed to look at a compromise.  He believes staff misrepresented 
information from the potential compromise meetings between the city and 1000 Friends by giving a PowerPoint 
presentation containing incorrect information about what was said, including maps having nothing to do with 
the compromise proposal, and giving incorrect information stating the only option was scattered sites without 
another area large enough to provide the acreage.  Mr. Friedman remembers the compromise proposal including 
an area that was large enough and met all site characteristics. Mr. Friedman thinks the county is giving Newberg 
great advice to reconsider and divide the UGB proposal, and they seem to be serious since they remanded the 
city’s proposal.   
 
Councilor Bacon said she was at the spring compromise meetings and remembers the compromise including 
one large piece of property, but also several smaller pieces around the city in order to reach their acreage 
number.  Mr. Friedman replied there were several sites they could have rezoned, but the city objected to their 
plan, so they suggested taking in area within the UGB outside city limits and urban reserve.  Mr. Friedman 
restated he remembers the compromise differently.   
 
Mr. Lee Does mentioned the letter sent to the council by 1000 Friends and is hoping they all give it serious 
consideration.  He feels the solution to this issue is within reach and is encouraging the council to take the 
suggestion that 1000 Friends of Oregon has made and the county agrees with.  He feels the process is being 
delayed because city staff is refusing to work within the rules and laws.  The longer it is dragged out the more 
employers Newberg loses and the more resources and money the people of Newberg lose.   
 
Councilor Howard mentioned he is not in favor of sending the letter to the county as it is, because the plan was 
developed almost a decade ago and needs some reconsideration.  The laws in relation to the UGB are 
ambiguous for when you can build on prime farmland.  He believes there are better ways to more forward and 
would like to do what is right for citizens.  
 
MOTION: Rierson/Bacon   endorsing a letter to the Yamhill County Commissioners requesting they adopt 
the South Industrial UGB amendment.   
 
Councilor Rierson said decisions and agreements cannot be made by only a few council members, such as those 
present at the spring meeting.  He understands 1000 Friends of Oregon’s alternative plan; however, they are not 
the only opponents of the UGB and agreeing to their suggestions will only make a small portion of opposition 
happy.  Having the industrial properties spread throughout the city is not cost effective and having them in 
inappropriate areas is not a good idea either.  He thinks the plan is very well thought through.   
 
Councilor Corey asked which other properties would need to be added to reach the entire amount of acreage, 
since the alternative area 1000 Friends of Oregon is suggesting looks like one large area, not several smaller 
ones.  He also questioned what the legal requirements are to turn farmland into industrial land.   
 
Councilor Howard answered in order to get all the acreage into one area they need to follow the city’s current 
UGB plan.  He further explained farmland cannot be changed to industrial land unless there are no other 
acceptable lands available.  However, it is a point of contention as to what the requirements are for industrial 
land.  Councilor Howard also mentioned some industrial uses such as software companies could be next to 
residential or other areas and not need a buffer of space like a heavier industrial company would.   
 
Mr. Danicic added the 1000 Friends of Oregon’s map showed an area not discussed before.  The city’s proposed 
UGB land is next to the bypass corridor and is kept away from residential land.  The area suggested by 1000 
Friends of Oregon needs a large amount of work before it could be used for industrial purposes.   

Page 10



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (January 22, 2013) Page 4 of 4 

 
Councilor Corey asked why the county sent back the letter.  Mr. Danicic replied the county feels if the city split 
the acreage or chose another area we may avoid litigation.   
 
Councilor McKinney added he thinks litigation will more than likely happen no matter how they present the 
UGB.  Mr. Terrance Mahr, city attorney, restated there are conflicting rules with protecting farmland but this 
proposal must include some farmland to get the full acreage.  He added that Mr. Brierley knows the rules and 
has done studies.  Mr. Mahr remembers the meetings in the spring and that they never came to a solid decision 
because the groups fell apart before one could be made.   
 
MOTION: Rierson/Bacon endorsing a letter to the Yamhill County Commissioners requesting they adopt 
the South Industrial UGB amendment.  Motion carried (4 Yes/3 No). 
 
IX. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3031 authorizing the city manager to waive 
the competitive purchasing requirement for the purchase of screw press dewatering system 
components. 

TIME – 8:19 PM 
 
Mr. Jay Harris, City Engineer, presented the staff report accompanied by a handout (see official meeting packet 
for full report).   
 
Staff recommends adopting Resolution No. 2013-3031. 
 
Discussion commenced on what types of machines they need, how many will be purchased, and how the 
machines function.  
 
MOTION: Rierson/McKinney adopting Resolution No. 2013-3031 authorizing the city manager to waive 
the competitive purchasing requirement for the purchase of screw press dewatering system components. Motion 
carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 
X. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
No items for discussion.  
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 8:32 PM. 
 

ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 19th day of February, 2013. 
 
 

    _______________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 21st day of February, 2013. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  
 

Page 11



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 12



 
 
City of Newberg: FEBRUARY 19, 2013 RCA MOTION - 9TH STREET VACATION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 19, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Vacation of the portion of the Ninth 
Street right-of-way dedicated to the City between 
Industrial Parkway and Highway 219. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Steve Olson, Associate Planner 
Dept.: Planning & Building 
File No.: VAC-11-002 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Make a motion to continue the hearing to April 15, 2013, to allow additional time 
for the abutting property owners to develop a resolution acceptable to all parties.    
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 
Background:  In January of 2011 Airpark Properties, LLC and the Norman Family Trust submitted an 
application (file # VAC-11-002) requesting the City vacate the portion of the Ninth Street right-of-way 
between Industrial Parkway and Highway 219. The City Council held a public hearing on July 5, 2011, and 
concluded the right-of-way dedicated to the City was no longer necessary as a street and could be vacated. 
The Council made a motion tentatively approving Ordinance No. 2011-2742 and initiating the vacation 
conditional upon the applicant supplying legal descriptions and map exhibits of the area to be vacated and 
any necessary utility and access easements. The item was tabled. 
 
The two property owners discussed the vacation but could not come to an agreement on the location of an 
access easement. On June 20, 2012, the Norman Family Trust sent the city a letter withdrawing the Norman's 
consent for the vacation application. On July 9, 2012, Airpark Properties, LLC sent the city a letter saying 

Norman Family Trust 

Page 13



 
 
City of Newberg: FEBRUARY 19, 2013 RCA MOTION - 9TH STREET VACATION Page 2 

the vacation was still in the best interests of the city and asked the city to proceed with the vacation without 
the consent of the Normans. 
 
On August 20, 2012, the City Council decided to take the vacation proposal off the table, reopen public 
testimony on the proposed vacation, and schedule a public hearing for October 15, 2012, to take public 
testimony and evaluate the proposal. The City Council voted on October 15, 2012, to postpone the public 
hearing on the vacation until February 19, 2013, to allow the property owners time to meet. 
 
Recent developments: City staff met with the abutting property owners on December 12, 2012, to discuss the 
issues with the vacation and attempt to find mutually acceptable solutions. No such solutions were found. Ed 
Bartholemy, one of the adjacent property owners, requested additional time to come up with an acceptable 
solution. Staff recommends the City Council continue the hearing to April 15, 2013, to allow additional time 
to develop an acceptable resolution.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3036 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 19, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2013-3036 

SUBJECT:  Accept the Engineer’s Report and set a 
public hearing for May 6, 2013, to consider the 
formation of the College Street Local Improvement 
District 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Paul Chiu, P.E., Senior Engineer 
Dept.: Public Works Department - Engineering 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Adopt Resolution No. 2013-3036. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
The City entered into an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the Oregon Department of Transportation 
(ODOT) to complete the N. College Street Improvement Project in 2011.  The IGA provides over 
$800,000.00 in Transportation Enhancement (TE) funding through an ODOT grant for right-of-way 
acquisition, survey, design, and construction of curb and gutter, sidewalk, storm drain on the west side, and 
bicycle lanes on both sides of N. College Street (also known as Highway 219), from Vermillion Street to 
Aldercrest Drive.  The City agreed to provide a grant match and complete a portion of the improvements 
near the Vermillion Street/College Street intersection at the railroad crossing.  The City’s cost for the 
remaining work to be completed is estimated at $194,197.00. 
 
On June 4, 2012, City Council directed staff to prepare an informational report for a potential College Street 
Local Improvement District (LID) to recoup all or a portion of the City’s costs for the project. On November 
5, 2012, Council reviewed the informal report and discussed the options presented.  Council indicated their 
preference of Scenario #1 that apportioned costs to all of the west side property owners regardless of whether 
those properties have waivers of remonstrance agreements in place.  On December 17, 2012, City Council 
further directed staff to prepare an Engineer’s Report that would recoup 100 percent of the estimated cost to 
the City.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Although the bulk of this improvement project is being paid by grant funds, it is estimated the City will 
contribute approximately $194,197.00 to the project.  A portion of the project cost was budgeted and 
expended in Fiscal Year 2011-2012 under account number 18-5150-702165.  The remaining project cost is 
included in the approved Fiscal Year 2012-2013 budget under the same account number.  
   
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
This project provides improved pedestrian and bicyclist connections along a major state and city route in 
accordance with the City’s Transportation System Plan and the Newberg ADA/Pedestrian/Bike Route 
Improvement Plan. 
 
The formation of an LID will allow the City to be in a financial position to better leverage state funding for 
future phases of the N. College Street Improvements. 

Page 15



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3036 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3036 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE ENGINEER’S REPORT AND SETTING A 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR MAY 6, 2013, TO CONSIDER THE FORMATION OF 
THE COLLEGE STREET LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The City and Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) have an existing intergovernmental 

agreement to complete the College Street Transportation Enhancement Project.  ODOT grant funds 
will pay for the majority of the project.  The City’s expense is estimated at $194,197.00. 
 

2. On November 5, 2012, an informational report was presented to City Council for a potential College 
Street Local Improvement District (LID) along the west side of N. College Street from Illinois Street 
to Aldercrest Drive.  The report explained the significance of the existing waivers of remonstrance 
agreements and provided methodologies for three potential LID scenarios. 
 

3. On December 17, 2012, staff presented City Council with several scenarios for their consideration.  
Staff also discussed the approximate compensation from ODOT to property owners for future 
potential right-of-way acquisitions.  Council expressed their preference to recoup 100 percent of the 
City’s expense and directed staff to present an Engineer’s Report for the LID which is attached as 
Exhibit “A” and by this reference incorporated. 
 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

The City Council accepts the Engineer’s Report, Exhibit “A”, which is hereby adopted and by this 
reference incorporated, and sets a public hearing for May 6, 2013, to consider the formation of the 
College Street Local Improvement District.   

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: February 20, 2013. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 19th day of February 2013. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 21st day of February 2013. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

Page 16



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 1   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

 
Newberg Public Works Department  
Engineering Division 
 

January 23, 2013 
 

COLLEGE STREET LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ENGINEER’S REPORT 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
  
On December 17, 2012, the Newberg City Council adopted Resolution No. 2012-3020 directing 
the engineering division staff to prepare an Engineer’s Report for the consideration of the 
formation of the College Street Local Improvement District (LID) along the west side of N. 
College Street from Illinois Street to Aldercrest Drive.  The process for the formation of the LID 
follows the policies established in the Newberg Municipal Code Sections 3.15.010 through 
3.15.170. 
 
In 2011, the City entered into an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the Oregon 
Department of Transportation (ODOT) to receive a State Transportation Enhancement (TE) grant 
to improve N. College Street (also known as Highway 219) from Vermillion Street to Aldercrest 
Drive. The grant provides over $800,000.00 for right-of-way acquisition, survey, design, and 
construction of curb and gutter, sidewalk, and storm drain on the west side of the highway, and 
bicycle lanes on both sides.  The City agreed to provide a grant match and to complete the 
southern portion of the improvements along N. College Street from Vermillion Street to Illinois 
Street including the sidewalk on the west side of the highway for railroad crossing.  This southern 
portion of the improvements was completed on July 6, 2012.  Conceptual design for the 
remaining improvements from Illinois Street to Aldercrest Drive was completed in 2012 and the 
final design is planned for 2013.  Construction will occur in 2014.  The City’s cost for the 
remaining work is estimated to be $194,197.00. 
 
A preliminary report that offered various assessment methodologies was presented to City 
Council on December 17, 2012 following an initial presentation on June 4, 2012.  The estimated 
construction costs for the proposed (a) curbs and sidewalks, and (b) storm drainage, are in the 
range of $120,000 and $260,000 respectively.  Council indicated their preference to recoup 
100% of the City’s cost of the project.  While many properties along this highway are 
encumbered by waiver of remonstrance agreements for street improvements, Council has 
directed that the costs be apportioned to all west side property owners regardless of whether 
they have waiver in place.  The cost for each property owner will be substantially reduced due to 
ODOT’s grant contribution.  Property owners will be compensated by ODOT separately if 
additional right-of-way is acquired for the improvements. 
 
The participation and support of benefitting property owners for the LID will place the City in a 
competitive and improved financial position to leverage future state funding for the next phases of 
improvements from Aldercrest Drive to Foothills Drive. 

 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 17



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 2   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1. Project Background ................................................................................................. 3 
            Figure 1:  Vicinity Map .................................................................................. 3 

2. Local Improvement District Process ........................................................................ 4 
3. College Street Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements ............................................. 4 

Figure 2:  Waiver of Remonstrance Map ...................................................... 5 
Table 1:  Properties With & Without Waivers and/or Frontages ................... 6 
Table 2:  Percentage With & Without Waivers of Remonstrance ................. 6 

4. Improvement Description and Cost ......................................................................... 6 
           Figure 3:  College Street Typical Cross Section ........................................... 7 

5. Recommended Assessment Methodology and Proposed Assessments ................ 8 
            Table 3:  Property Identification & Proposed Assessments .......................... 8 

6. Assessment Timing and Financing ......................................................................... 9 
Table 4:  Bi-Annual Payments on 10-year Loan @ 3.25% Interest ............ 9 

 
 
APPENDICES 
A. Newberg Municipal Code Chapter 3.15 .................................................................. 11 
B. The LID Public Process ........................................................................................... 23 
C. N. College Street Improvements Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements ................. 24 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                       

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 18



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 3   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

1. Project Background 
 
The City has an interest in improving N. College Street to enhance the safety of pedestrian and 
bicycling travel (see Figure 1).  There is discontinuity in the sidewalk system along N. College 
Street which forces pedestrians to walk in the travel lane or behind the roadside ditch.  Bicyclists 
use the travel lanes because there are no bike lanes and the existing shoulders are inadequate.  
N. College Street is classified as a minor arterial street per the Newberg Transportation System 
Plan. 
 

 
FIGURE 1: VICINITY MAP 

 
On June 8, 2011, the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) and the City entered into an 
agreement that ODOT would provide $600,000 towards funding the pedestrian and bike lane 
improvements to N. College Street (Highway 219).  On August 22, 2011, both parties signed an 
amendment that ODOT would provide an additional $200,000 towards the project.  In return, the 
City has agreed to contribute “matching funds” at 10.27% for the first $660,000 and 50% for any 
portion above $660,000 plus an additional $24,000 and any non-participating costs.  The City 
also agreed to improve the southern portion of the improvements from Vermillion Street to Illinois 
Street that included the pedestrian crossings at the railroad. 
 
In June 2012, the City completed the southern portion of the improvements in collaboration with 
Portland and Western Railroad Company and the ODOT Rail Division.  The remainder of the 
improvements from Illinois Street to Aldercrest Drive is in the final design and right-of-way 
solicitation phase with bid solicitation planned for March 2014, and construction in summer 2014. 
The City’s cost for the remaining work is estimated at $194,197.00.  The City has an opportunity 
to recoup this cost by initiating a Local Improvement District (LID) in this area.  The LID process 
is outlined in the next section. 

N. COLLEGE STREET  

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 19



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 4   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

2. Local Improvement District Process 
 
The Newberg Municipal Code Chapter 3.15 (see Appendix A) provides the criteria for creating a 
Local Improvement District and establishes the public process (refer to Appendix B) that must be 
followed in order to assess the benefitting property owners with the costs of constructing certain 
public improvements.  An LID may be created for a capital improvement project that provides 
special benefits to specific properties, or to rectify an existing problem such as a substandard 
improvement and assess the identified properties for the costs to complete the improvements. 
 
In the past, some developments were approved that purposely delayed public improvements until 
the formation of a future LID.  The City required documents from the applicants that would waive 
their right to file a written objection to construct public improvements through an LID in the future. 
This document known as a waiver of remonstrance agreement is similar to an easement as it 
remains as an encumbrance on the property, or any portion of the original property through land 
divisions, regardless of changes of property ownership or land divisions, until the improvement is 
completed. If a property is encumbered with a waiver of remonstrance agreement, the property 
owner is legally obligated to participate in an LID through the provisions outlined in the Municipal 
Code. The waivers of remonstrance do not take away the property owners’ right to object to 
costs or the methodologies used in calculating the assessments for the improvements. 
 
Should the City Council determine that the formation of an LID is warranted, the Municipal Code 
directs the Council to consider the objections made, and to adopt or modify the proposed 
assessments in proportion to the benefits to each property in the LID. The Municipal Code 
requires the use of a fair and reasonable method for determining an LID boundary and the 
apportioning of the costs among the benefited properties. The Municipal Code also prescribes 
that if written objection, or remonstrance, is filed against the proposed LID from persons 
representing 60 percent or more of the proposed assessment within the district, or from owners 
of at least 60 percent of the properties within the district, the LID proceedings must be halted for 
at least six (6) months.  Several exceptions to the 6 month waiting period exist for sidewalks or 
an emergency declared by City Council. 
 
3. College Street Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements 
 
When an LID is created, a typical boundary would include all properties with frontages along the 
improvement area, which are considered the benefitting properties.  The College Street 
improvement area is rather unique in that it has a relatively large number of properties with 
existing waivers of remonstrance to the improvements (see Appendix C).  Essentially many 
property owners have already waived their rights to object to the creation of this LID, even 
though some properties do not directly front N. College Street (see Figure 2). 
 
The relationship of waivers of remonstrance to actual street frontages is important in defining the 
LID boundary.  There are a total of 73 properties along the west side of N. College Street from 
Illinois Street to Aldercrest Drive, excluding the NW corner lot at Illinois Street/Deskins Road and 
the SW corner lot at Columbia Drive/College Street which already have full frontage 
improvements.  Of those 73 properties, 24 have direct frontage on College Street and 49 do not. 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 20



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 5   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

FIGURE 2: WAIVERS OF REMONSTRANCE MAP 

 
 
 

Numbers shown are house addresses. 
Properties without addresses are shown 
with tax lot (TL) numbers. 

TL2901 

TL3200 

TL2700 

TL102 TL101 

TL201 

TL2600 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 21



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 6   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

In terms of waivers, 50 properties have waivers of remonstrance agreements and 23 do not.  Of 
those 50 with waivers, only 7 properties have frontages on N. College Street while 43 of them do 
not (see Table 1). 
 

 TABLE 1:  PROPERTIES WITH & WITHOUT 
WAIVERS AND/OR FRONTAGES 

   

 
Direct 

Frontage
No 

Frontage  T
ot

al
 

Waivers 7 43 50 

No 
Waivers 17 6 23 

Total  24 49   

  
The proposed LID includes all 73 properties with a project length of 2,166.93 feet and 35.67% or 
773.03 feet of the properties have signed waivers to the creation of an LID.  The remaining 
properties without waivers represent 64.33% or 1,393.90 feet of the proposed LID, could object 
and potentially halt the LID (see Table 2). 
 

TABLE 2:  PROPOSED LID PROPERTY PERCENTAGE 
WITH & WITHOUT WAIVERS OF REMONSTRANCE 

 

TOTAL PROJECT 
FRONTAGE (FT) = 2,166.93

 
PERCENTAGE 

FRONTAGE WITH 
WAIVERS (FT) = 773.03 35.67% 
FRONTAGE WITHOUT 
WAIVERS (FT)= 1,393.90 64.33% 

 

 
4. Improvement Description and Costs 
 
The proposed College Street improvements with its limits described and shown in Section 3 
above includes nearly 2,200 feet of half-street improvements to a minor arterial street standard 
that includes a bike lane, sidewalk, concrete curb and gutter, and a planter strip where feasible, 
on the west side of N. College Street from Illinois Street to Aldercrest Drive.  The existing 
pavement in this area is in fair condition and does not require an overlay or reconstruction.  
Sidewalks, curb and gutter will not be constructed on the east side of N. College Street.  The 
existing paved shoulder on the east side will be utilized and restriped to provide a bike lane.  
Since improvements are not proposed on the east side of N. College Street, the east side 
properties are not included in the proposed LID.  The pavement width on the west side of College 
Street will be extended to accommodate the new bike lane.  The improvements will meet design 
standards for a 36-foot roadway section as shown in Figure 3. 
 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 22



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 7   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

 
FIGURE 3:  COLLEGE STREET TYPICAL CROSS SECTION 

(MINOR ARTERIAL FULL WIDTH STANDARD) 
 
Improvements to water or wastewater systems on College Street are not needed at this time.  
However, the waterline does need to be relocated (using a separate City’s water fund) due to its 
shallow depth.  Stormwater conveyance, water quality and quantity improvements will be 
provided to meet ODOT and City standards. 
 
During the preliminary design phase, the total construction cost for the proposed improvements 
from Illinois Street to Aldercrest Drive was estimated to be $762,000.00.  The majority of this cost 
is funded by state and federal grants.  The City’s cost for the grant match and internal project 
administration is estimated at $194,197.00.  The estimated construction costs for the proposed 
(a) curbs and sidewalks, and (b) storm drainage, are in the range of $120,000 and $260,000 
respectively.  The City Council has indicated their preference to recoup 100% of the City’s 
estimated cost of $194,197.00 which is significantly less than the actual cost of design and 
construction for the sidewalk, curb and gutter, and the associated storm drainage improvements. 
 The LID assessment for each property owner is therefore, substantially reduced because of 
ODOT’s grant contribution. 
 
Property owners will be compensated separately by ODOT if additional right-of-way is needed to 
accommodate the improvements.  ODOT will be working directly with the property owners to 
acquire any additional rights-of-way and easements needed for the project.  Compensation 
offered to the property owners will be fair, equitable and negotiable per state and federal 
guidelines.  Compensation for right-of-way purchases will be treated separately to avoid mixing of 
funds with the LID assessments. 
 
5.  Recommended Assessment Methodology and Proposed Assessments 
 
Staff recommends that the City’s estimated costs ($194,197) be assessed to property owners 
based on a cost per a lineal frontage foot.  Based on that recommendation, Table 3 shows a list 
of properties within the proposed LID boundary and the proposed assessments.  These 
assessments have been calculated at $89.62 per frontage foot.  In cases where there are interior 
lots, all properties divided from each parent parcel share the total frontage costs equally. 
 
Staff recognizes a property with a street address, 501 Mission Drive, has an existing sidewalk (a 
partial frontage improvement already completed).  This property will see a reduced LID 
assessment.  Another property at 703 Deskins Street (at the corner of Illinois) has a complete 
frontage improvement and is excluded from the LID. 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 23



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 8   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

TABLE 3:  PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION & PROPOSED ASSESSMENTS 

TL 101  TL102 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 24



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 9   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

6.  Assessment Timing and Financing 
 
Assessments are due and payable in full upon completion of the LID improvements, which is 
anticipated near the end of 2014, and after notification of acceptance by City Council of the final 
assessments.  The Newberg Municipal Code provides an option for the owners of assessed 
properties to finance the assessments.  The term of loan is for 10 years and payments are made 
every 6 months.  The City can generally offer interest rates that are lower than the average 
market rates.  Table 4 provides a general idea of what the owners of assessed properties of the 
College Street LID would pay every six months if they chose to finance their assessments 
through the City assuming a 3.25% fixed rate were available.  Actual rates will be determined 
when the properties are assessed.  Property owners may also choose to obtain financing through 
an outside lending institution or pay the assessment in cash.   
 
  
TABLE 4: BI-ANNUAL PAYMENTS ON 10-YEAR LOAN AT 3.25% INTEREST 

 
Principal Bi-annual Payment 

$5,000 $331.25 

$10,000 $662.50 

$15,000 $993.75 

$20,000 $1,325.00 

$25,000 $1,656.25 

$30,000 $1,987.50 
 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 25



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 10   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

 
 
 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 

A. Newberg Municipal Code Chapter 3.15 
B. The LID Public Process 
C. N. College Street Improvements Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 26



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 11   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

APPENDIX A 
Newberg Municipal Code Chapter 3.15 

LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS 

Sections: 

3.15.010    Title. 

3.15.020    Definitions. 

3.15.030    Plans and specifications. 

3.15.040    Assessing. 

3.15.050    Resolution. 

3.15.060    Notices to property owners. 

3.15.070    Public hearing and remonstrances. 

3.15.080    Ordinance creating local improvement district. 

3.15.090    Call for bids. 

3.15.100    Assessment ordinance procedures. 

3.15.110    Lien recording – Payments over time or by cash. 

3.15.120    Errors in assessment calculations. 

3.15.130    Authority of city to make reassessment. 

3.15.140    Consent or waiving requirement of notice. 

3.15.150    Assessment of public property benefited by improvements. 

3.15.160    Abandonment of proceedings. 

3.15.170    Curative provision. 

3.15.010 Title. 

This chapter shall be known as the local improvement district ordinance. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 
2001 § 36.40.] 

3.15.020 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 
indicates or requires a different meaning: 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 27



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 12   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

“Actual cost” means all direct or indirect costs incurred by the city in order to undertake and complete 
a capital construction project. “Actual cost” includes, but is not limited to, the costs of labor, materials, 
supplies, equipment rental, property acquisition, permits, engineering, financing (bond issuance costs), 
reasonable program delinquencies, return on investment, required fees, insurance, administration, 
accounting, depreciation, amortization, operation, maintenance, repair or replacement and debt service, 
including debt service payments or payments into reserve accounts for debt service and payment of 
amounts necessary to meet debt service coverage requirements. 

“Assessment for local improvement” means any fee, charge, or assessment that does not exceed the 
actual cost of a local improvement incurred by the city. 

“Bonded indebtedness” means any formally executed written agreement representing a promise by the 
city to pay to another specified sum of money, at a specified date(s) at least one year in the future. 

“Capital construction” means the construction, modification, replacement, repair, remodeling or 
renovation of a structure, or addition to a structure, which is expected to have a useful life of more than 
one year, and includes, but is not limited to: 

1. Acquisition of land, or a legal interest in land, in conjunction with a capital construction of a 
structure. 

2. Acquisition, installation of machinery or equipment, furnishings or materials which will become an 
integral part of a structure. 

3. Activities related to the capital construction, such as planning design, acquisition of interim or 
permanent financing, research, land use and environmental impact studies, acquisition of permits or 
licenses or services connected with the construction. 

4. Acquisition of existing structures, or legal interests in structures, in conjunction with the capital 
construction. 

“Capital improvement” means land, structures, or facilities, as that term is defined in the Oregon 
Revised Statutes, machinery, equipment or furnishings having a useful life longer than one year. 

“City engineer” means the duly appointed official or, if such official does not exist, a designated 
engineer or firm of engineers, charged with engineering responsibilities. 

“Estimated assessment” means: 

1. With respect to each property to be assessed in connection with a local improvement, the total 
assessment that, at the time of giving notice of the assessment and the right to object or remonstrate, 
the city estimates will be levied against the property following completion of the local improvement. 
The estimate shall be based on the estimated cost of the local improvement and the proposed formula 
for apportioning the actual cost to the property. 

2. Estimated assessment shall be determined by: 

a. Excluding the estimated financing costs associated with any bonds issued to accommodate the 
payment of the assessment in installments; and 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 28



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 13   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

b. Including the estimated financing costs associated with interim financing of the local improvement. 

“Final assessment” means, with respect to each property to be assessed in connection with a local 
improvement, the total assessment levied against the property following completion of the local 
improvement. The total assessment shall be based on the actual cost of the local improvement and the 
formula for apportioning the actual cost to the property. 

“Financing” means all costs necessary or attributable to acquiring and preserving interim or permanent 
financing of a local improvement. 

1. The costs of financing may include the salaries, wages and benefits payable to employees to the 
extent the same are reasonably allocable to the work or services performed by the employees in 
connection with the financing of a local improvement or any part of a local improvement. However, as 
a condition to including of any salaries, wages or benefits payable to employees of the city as 
financing costs of a local improvement or any part of a local improvement, the city shall establish a 
record-keeping system to track the actual work done or services performed by each employee on or in 
connection with such local improvement. 

2. Financing costs that are to be incurred after the levy of a final assessment may be included, whether 
directly in the final assessment or in the interest rate charged on installment payments, based on the 
city’s reasonable estimate of the financing costs if the city first documents the basis for the estimate 
and makes the documentation available to interested persons on request. 

“Local improvement” means a capital construction project, or part of a capital construction project, 
undertaken by the city pursuant to the procedure to be followed in making local assessments for the 
benefits from a local improvement upon the lots which have been benefited by all or part of the 
improvement: 

1. Which provides a special benefit only to specific properties or rectifies a problem caused by specific 
properties; and 

2. The costs of which are assessed against those properties in a single assessment upon the completion 
of the project; and 

3. For which the payment of the assessment plus appropriate interest may be spread over a period of at 
least 10 years by the property owner; and 

4. For which the total of all assessments for the local improvement shall not exceed the actual cost 
incurred by the city in completing the project; and 

5. For which the status of a capital construction project as a local improvement is not affected by the 
accrual of a general benefit to property other than the property receiving the specific benefit. 

“Lot” means lot, block, or parcel of land. 

“Manager” means the city manager of the City of Newberg. 

“Owner” means the owner of the title to real property or the contract purchaser of real property of 
record as shown on the last available complete assessment roll in the office of the Yamhill County 
assessor. 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 29



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 14   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

“Property benefited” means all property specially benefited by the improvement, the relative extent of 
such benefit to be determined by any just and reasonable method of apportionment of the actual cost of 
the improvement between the properties determined to be specially benefited. 

1. Real property may be described by giving the subdivision according to the United States survey 
when coincident with the boundaries, or by lots, blocks and additional names, or by giving the 
boundaries of the property by metes and bounds, or by reference to the book and page of any public 
record of the county where the description may be found, or by designation of a tax lot number, or in 
any other manner as to cause the description to be capable of being made certain. 

2. If the owner of any land is unknown, the land may be assessed to “unknown owner(s).” If the 
property is correctly described, no final assessment shall be invalidated by a mistake in the name of the 
owner of the real property assessed or by the omission of the name of the owner or the entry of the 
name other than that of the true owner. Where the name of the true owner, or the owner of record, of 
any parcel of real property is given, the final assessment shall not be held invalid on account of any 
error or irregularity in the description if the description would be sufficient in a deed of conveyance 
from the owner, or is such that, in a suit to enforce a contract to convey, employing such description, a 
court of equity would hold it to be good and sufficient. 

3. Any description of real property which conforms substantially to the requirements of this section 
shall be a sufficient description in all proceedings of assessment relating or leading to a final 
assessment for a local improvement foreclosure and sale of delinquent assessments, and in any other 
proceedings related to or connected with levying, collecting and enforcing final assessments for special 
benefits to the property. 

“Remonstrance” means a written objection to the formation of a local improvement district. 

“Single assessment” means the complete assessment process, including preassessment, assessment or 
reassessment, for any authorized local improvement which provides the procedure to be followed in 
making local assessments for benefits from a local improvement upon lots which have been benefited 
by all or part of the improvement. 

“Special benefit only to specific properties” means the same meaning as “special and peculiar benefit” 
as that term is used in Oregon law. 

“Structure” means any temporary or permanent building or improvement to real property of any kind, 
which is constructed on or attached to real property, whether above, on or beneath the surface. [Ord. 
2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.41.] 

Cross-reference: See ORS 223.389 as found in ORS 310.140(14). 

3.15.030 Plans and specifications. 

Whenever the city council shall determine to proceed to make a local improvement to be paid for in 
full or in part by the property benefited, the city council shall, by motion, direct the city engineer to 
have a report prepared containing the following information: 

A. A description of the local improvement. 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 30



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 15   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

B. Preliminary plans and outline specifications for the local improvement. 

C. A description of the boundaries of the local improvement. 

D. A just and reasonable method of apportioning the actual cost of the local improvement to the 
properties benefited. 

E. A list of properties benefited by the local improvement, including the name and address of each 
owner; the assessed value of each property, adjusted in accordance with Oregon law; and a statement 
of the amount of outstanding assessments against any property proposed to be assessed by the 
improvements. 

F. The estimated cost of the improvement, including any legal, administrative and engineering costs 
attributable to the project. 

G. The estimated share of the estimated cost of the local improvement to be assessed to each property. 

H. The estimated share of the estimated cost of the local improvement to be paid by the city, if any. 
[Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.42.] 

Cross-reference: See ORS 223.389 as found in ORS 310.140(14). 

3.15.040 Assessing. 

The city council shall do the following in assessing the cost of the improvement: 

A. Use a fair and reasonable method for determining the extent of the district boundaries. 

B. Use a fair and reasonable method for apportioning the actual cost or estimated cost of the local 
improvement among the benefited properties. 

C. Consider payment by the city of all or part of the actual cost or estimated cost of the improvement 
when, in the opinion of the city council, on account of topographical, physical or other characteristics 
of the local improvement or expected unusual or excessive use by the general public, payment by the 
city would be appropriate or when the city council otherwise believes it would be just and reasonable 
for the city to pay all or part of the cost. 

D. Consider other available means of financing the improvement. In the event other means of 
financing are used, the city council may, subject to the constraints of the Oregon Constitution and 
Oregon laws, in its discretion, levy assessments to cover any part of the actual cost of the local 
improvement not covered by the alternative means of finance. The use of any available alternative 
means of financing lies solely within the discretion of the city council. 

E. Not give credits for corner lots. 

F. Assess unimproved property subject to a maximum depth of 200 feet. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 
2001 § 36.43.] 

Cross-reference: See ORS 223.389 as found in ORS 310.140(14). 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 31



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 16   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

3.15.050 Resolution. 

A. After the engineer’s report has been filed with the city manager, after the city council has examined 
the report and found the same to be satisfactory and having found the estimated costs and 
apportionment to be reasonable and just, and after having found the boundaries of the improvement 
district to be properly determined, the city council may, by resolution, propose to make the 
improvement, and to create a local improvement district. 

B. The resolution shall state: 

1. The boundaries of the local improvement district. 

2. The proposed method for apportioning the estimated cost of the local improvement among the 
benefited properties. 

3. The portion of the estimated cost, if any, which the city will pay. 

4. That the portion of the estimated cost which is assessed to the properties benefited shall be a charge 
and lien upon those properties. 

5. The time and place for a public hearing before the city council to hear objections and receive 
remonstrances. 

6. Directions to the city engineer to provide a notice of public hearing to the owners of the properties 
benefited which contains the following: 

a. A brief and general description of the proposed local improvement and a statement that a more 
detailed description is set forth in a report on file in the city engineer’s office and city manager’s 
office. 

b. That the city council proposes to create a local improvement district and will be holding a public 
hearing to hear objectives and receive remonstrances to the local improvement. 

c. The date, time and place of the public hearing. 

d. A description of the properties to be benefited, the owners of the properties, the estimated cost of the 
improvement and the estimated assessment for each property benefited. 

e. A statement that if, at or before the public hearing, written remonstrances against the local 
improvement are filed with the city engineer by the owners of at least 60 percent of the property to be 
assessed, action on the local improvement shall be suspended for at least six months. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-
96. Code 2001 § 36.44.] 

3.15.060 Notices to property owners. 

A. Form of Notice. Any notice required hereunder shall be sent by registered or certified mail or by 
personal delivery to the owner of each property proposed to be assessed, and shall include the 
estimated assessment proposed for that property, the date by which time objections shall be filed with 
the city engineer, and that such objection shall state the grounds for the objection. 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 32



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 17   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

B. Delivery of Notice. Whenever a notice is required to be sent to the owner of a lot affected by a 
proposed assessment, the notice shall be addressed to the owner or the owner’s agent. If the address of 
the owner or the owner’s agent is unknown to the city, the notice shall be addressed to the owner or the 
owner’s agent at the city where the property is located. Any mistake, error, omission, or failure with 
respect to such mailing shall not be jurisdictional or invalidate the assessment proceedings, but there 
shall be no foreclosure or legal action to collect until notice has been given by personal service upon 
the property owner, or if personal service cannot be had, then by publication once a week for two 
successive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the city. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 
§ 36.45.] 

3.15.070 Public hearing and remonstrances. 

A public hearing before the city council shall be held at the scheduled date and time and the city 
council shall hear and consider objections and receive remonstrances to the local improvement. If 
those persons representing 60 percent or more of the proposed assessment within the district file with 
the city engineer a written objection or remonstrance against the proposed improvement, the 
remonstrance shall be a bar to any further proceedings in the making of such improvement for a period 
of six months, except for a sidewalk or improvement unanimously declared by the city council to be 
needed at once because of an emergency. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.46.] 

3.15.080 Ordinance creating local improvement district. 

A. Public Hearing. After the public hearing, the city council may create a local improvement district by 
ordinance. The ordinance shall describe the improvement(s) to be made, the boundary of the district, 
the estimated assessments against the properties benefited, and shall state that the assessment shall be 
charges and liens against the properties. The city may enforce collection of the assessments as 
provided in Oregon law. 

B. Adoption Process. In creating the local improvement by ordinance, the city council shall consider 
the objections or remonstrances made and reasons stated for them. The city council may adopt, correct, 
modify or revise the proposed assessments or estimated assessments and shall determine the amount or 
estimated assessment to be charged against each lot within the district, according to the special and 
peculiar benefits accruing thereto from the improvement and shall by ordinance spread the 
assessments. The estimated assessment lien shall continue until the time the estimated assessment 
becomes a final assessment. 

C. Plans. The ordinance shall also direct the city engineer to have detailed plans and specifications of 
the local improvement prepared and that, when appropriate, the city shall invite bids for construction 
of the local improvement. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.47.] 

Cross-reference: See ORS 223.866. 

3.15.090 Call for bids. 

A. Work to Be Done. The construction work may be done in whole or in part by the city, by a 
contractor, or by any other governmental agency, or by any combination of the city, a contractor, or a 
governmental agency. 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 33



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 18   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

B. Low Bids. If all or part of the improvement is to be constructed by a contractor, the city shall call 
for bids for making the local improvement and award the bid to the lowest responsible bidder. 

C. Separate Bids. In the event that more than one local improvement shall be advertised for bids at the 
same time, all local improvement districts shall be bid separately. 

D. Aggregate Bid. The city council shall have the authority to accept the lowest responsible aggregate 
bid which is in the best interest of the city for all of the local improvement districts bid at the same 
time, and allocate the proper amount of the total cost to each district separately. 

E. City Council Discretion. The city council may reject any or all bids. 

F. Rebidding. If no bids are received, or if all bids are rejected, the city council may call for other bids, 
change the manner in which the local improvement shall be constructed, or abandon the local 
improvement. 

G. Excessive Bids. If the lowest responsible bid exceeds the estimated cost of the local improvement, 
and if accepted would cause any estimated assessment to increase by more than 20 percent, and if the 
city council wants to proceed with the local improvement, before proceeding the city council shall 
revise the estimated assessments, hold another public hearing, after notice to the owners of the 
benefited properties of the new estimated assessment, and shall proceed as if that was the original 
public hearing except that new bids need not be solicited. 

H. Bond Required. The city council shall require bonding of all contractors for the faithful 
performance of the contract. All bidders shall be required to submit a certified check or bid bond in an 
amount equal to five percent of their bid, and the contractor to whom the award is made shall submit a 
performance bond in the amount of the awarded bid at the time the contract is awarded. All bonds shall 
be with bonding companies doing business in Oregon and given under Oregon law. Bonds shall 
incorporate the term of the plans and specifications and must be approved by the city attorney as to 
form. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.48.] 

Cross-reference: See ORS 279.380. 

3.15.100 Assessment ordinance procedures. 

A. Initial Assessments. If the city council determines that the local improvement district shall be 
created, the city council shall provide for the assessment or estimated assessment of the benefited 
properties, and for the apportionment of the assessment or estimated assessment to the properties 
benefited by ordinance by one of the following methods: 

1. Actual cost of the local improvement; or 

2. The estimated cost of the improvement. 

B. Notice. The city engineer shall prepare the assessment or estimated assessment for the properties 
benefited and file it with the appropriate city office. Notice of such assessment or estimated assessment 
shall be given to each owner of the properties benefited. The notice shall state the amount of the 
assessment or estimated assessment proposed for that property and set forth the date, time and place 
for a public hearing before the city council to hear objections to the proposed assessments. 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 34



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 19   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

C. Consideration of Proposed Assessment. The city council shall consider objections to the proposed 
assessments and may correct, modify, or revise the proposed assessments. After determining that the 
assessments meet the requirements of this chapter, the city council shall by ordinance spread the 
assessments. 

D. Actual Cost. In determining the assessment or estimated assessment for the local improvement the 
city council shall use the actual cost. 

E. Lien. The assessment ordinance shall provide that the assessments or estimated assessments against 
the benefited properties shall be a lien against the assessed properties and that the city may enforce 
collection of such assessments as provided by Oregon law. 

F. Estimated Cost. If the initial assessment has been made on the basis of estimated assessment, and 
upon the completion of work the actual cost is found to be greater or less than the estimated cost, the 
city council shall make an assessment for the actual cost. Proposed revised assessments shall be made; 
notice to the owners shall be sent; a public hearing for receiving and considering objections shall be 
held; determination of the assessment against each property benefited shall be made as in the case of 
the initial assessment; and the revised assessments shall be spread by ordinance. In the event that an 
estimated assessment which was greater than a revised assessment has been paid, the payor or the 
payor’s assigns or legal representative shall be refunded the difference. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 
§ 36.49.] 

Cross-reference: See ORS 223.866. 

3.15.110 Lien recording – Payments over time or by cash. 

A. Docket. After the passage of the assessment ordinance, the city manager shall direct to have entered 
in the docket of city liens a statement of the amount assessed upon each property benefited, together 
with a description of the improvement, the name of the owner(s) and the date of the assessment 
ordinance. Upon entry in the lien docket, the amount entered shall become a lien and charge upon the 
respective lots, parcel of land or portions of the lots or parcels of land which have been assessed. All 
assessment liens of the city shall be superior and prior to all other liens or encumbrances on the 
property insofar as the laws of the State of Oregon permit. 

B. Foreclosure. After the expiration of 30 days from the date the assessment ordinance was adopted, 
the city may proceed to foreclose or enforce collection of the assessment liens in any manner provided 
for by the laws of the State of Oregon. The city may, at its option, enter a bid for any property being 
offered at a foreclosure sale, which bid shall be prior to all bids except those made by persons who 
would be entitled under the laws of the State of Oregon to redeem the property. 

C. Final Assessment. After the final assessment has been adopted by the city council, the city shall 
publish the final assessments once in a newspaper of general circulation within the city and also send a 
copy by certified mail or deliver it personally to the owners of the properties to be assessed within 10 
days after the adoption of the ordinance. The notice shall identify the local improvement for which the 
assessment is to be made, each lot to be assessed, and the final assessment for each lot. In addition, the 
notice shall state that the owner shall have the right to apply to the city for payment of the final 
assessment in installments as provided by this chapter. 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 35



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 20   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

D. Time Payments. Within 10 days after notice of final assessment is mailed, the owner of any 
property to be assessed, at any time, may file a written application at the finance department to pay: 

1. The whole of the final assessment in installments; or 

2. If part of the final or estimated assessment has been paid, the unpaid balance of the final assessment 
in installments. Failure to apply for installment payments within 10 days will require full payment of 
the assessment within 30 days from the date of the entry of the lien in the city docket. 

E. Filing Deadline. At the option of the city, an installment application may be filed not more than 10 
days after the notice of the final assessment is first published. 

F. Waiver. The installment application shall state that the applicant does thereby waive all 
irregularities or defects, jurisdictional or otherwise, in the proceedings, including the apportionment of 
the cost of the improvement. 

G. Period of Payments. The application shall provide that the applicant agrees to pay the assessment in 
installments over a period of not less than 10 years nor more than 30 years and according to such terms 
as the city may provide. The city may provide that the owner of the assessed property may elect to 
have the final assessment payable over a period of less than 10 years and according to terms 
determined by the city. 

H. Interest. The application shall also provide that the applicant acknowledges and agrees to pay 
interest at the rate provided by the city. The interest shall be set at an interim rate which shall be 
applied to the unpaid balance until improvement bonds are sold to finance assessment bonds. Upon 
sale of bonds, the finance director shall adjust the interest rate to the rate received by the city on the 
bond issue (expressed as true interest cost). All subsequent payments will be made at the new adjusted 
rate.  

I. Loan Fees. To recover the costs for administering the bond assessment program, applicants will be 
charged a loan origination fee and billing fee as set by resolution and reviewed periodically by the 
finance committee of the city council. Those who initially choose to pay the assessment in full will not 
be charged these fees. 

J. Description of Property. The application shall also contain a description, by lots or blocks, or other 
convenient description, of the property of the application assessed for the local improvement. 

K. Payment Dates. The amount and due date of each installment shall be determined by the city and 
shall be set forth in the installment application. The first installment, plus accrued interest and fees, 
shall be due and payable on the date determined by the city and subsequent installments plus accrued 
interest and fees shall be due and payable on subsequent periodic dates as determined by the city. 

L. Delinquent Payments. If the installment payments or the interest or any portion of the interest are 
not paid within one year of their due date, then the city may pass a resolution: 

1. Giving the name of the owner in default; 

2. Stating the sum due, both principal and interest, and any unpaid late payment penalties or charges; 

3. Containing a description of the property subject to the assessment; and 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 36



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 21   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

4. Declaring the whole sum, both principal and interest, immediately due and payable. 

M. Collection. The city may then immediately proceed to collect all unpaid amounts owing and 
enforce collection by any method authorized by law for the collection of delinquent municipal liens. 
[Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.50.] 

Cross-reference: See ORS 311.711 for assessment and collection of liens. See also ORS Chapter 319 
for tax liens in general. 

3.15.120 Errors in assessment calculations. 

Claimed errors in the calculation of final assessments shall be called to the attention of the city 
manager prior to any payments on the account. The city manager shall check the calculation and report 
the findings to the city council. If an error has been made, the city council shall amend the final 
assessment ordinance to correct the error. Upon the enactment of the amendment, the city manager 
shall make the necessary correction in the lien docket and shall send by registered or certified mail to 
the owner a corrected notice of the assessment. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.51.] 

3.15.130 Authority of city to make reassessment. 

Whenever all or part of any assessment for a local improvement was or is declared void or set aside for 
any reason or its enforcement refused by any court by reason of jurisdictional or other defects in 
procedure, whether directly or by virtue of any court decision or when the city council is in doubt as to 
the validity of all or part of any such assessment by reason of such defects in procedure, the city 
council may by ordinance make a new assessment or reassessment upon the lots which have been 
benefited by all or part of the improvement to the extent of their respective and proportionate shares of 
the full value of such benefit. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.52.] 

3.15.140 Consent or waiving requirement of notice. 

The provisions of NMC 3.15.050(B)(6), insofar as it requires notice to the owners of the properties 
benefited, shall not apply if the owners of all assessable property within the proposed local 
improvement district have consented in writing to the local improvement and have waived the 
requirement for notice in the initial public hearing. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.53.] 

3.15.150 Assessment of public property benefited by improvements. 

A. Whenever all or any part of the cost of a local improvement is to be assessed to the property 
benefited, benefited property owned by the city, county, school district, park district, state and any 
other political subdivision shall be assessed in the same manner as private property and the amounts of 
the assessment shall be paid by the city, school district, county, park district, or state, as the case may 
be. 

B. In the case of property owned by the state, the amount of the assessment shall be certified by the 
city finance director and filed with the executive department as a claim for reference to the Legislative 
Assembly in the manner provided by Oregon law unless funds for the payment of the assessment have 
been otherwise provided by law. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.54.] 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 37



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 22   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

Cross-reference: See Section 1c of Article IX of the Oregon Constitution pertaining to financing for 
redevelopment and urban renewal projects. 

3.15.160 Abandonment of proceedings. 

The city council shall have full authority to abandon and rescind proceedings for a local improvement 
at any time prior to the final consummation of the proceedings. If liens have been assessed upon any 
property, they shall be cancelled, and any payments received shall be refunded to the payor, the 
payor’s assigns or legal representatives. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.55.] 

3.15.170 Curative provision. 

No local improvement assessment shall be invalid by reason of a failure to give, in any report, on the 
proposed assessment ordinance, in the lien docket or elsewhere in the proceedings, the name of the 
owner of any lot or other parcel of land, or part of any lot or other parcel of land, or the name of any 
person having a lien upon or interest in such property, or by reason of any error, mistake, delay, 
omission, irregularity, or other act, jurisdictional or otherwise, in any of the proceedings hereinabove 
specified, unless it appears that the assessment as made, insofar as it affects the person complaining, is 
unfair and unjust, and the city council shall have power and authority to remedy and correct all such 
matters by suitable actions and proceedings. [Ord. 2444, 6-3-96. Code 2001 § 36.56.] 

 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 38



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 23   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

APPENDIX B 
The LID Public Process 

 
 

 
 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 39



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 24   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

APPENDIX C 
Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements 

 
OPEN BIBLE CHURCH 

Tax Lots 3218AD-7000, -7100 

 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 40



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 25   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

APPENDIX C 
Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements 

 
OPEN BIBLE CHURCH 

Tax Lots 3218AD-7000, -7100 

 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 41



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 26   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

APPENDIX C 
Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements 

 
WILLOW PLACE ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY 

Tax Lot 3218AD-7401 

 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 42



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 27   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

APPENDIX C 
Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements 

 
WILLOW PLACE ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY 

Tax Lot 3218AD-7401 

 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 43



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 28   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

APPENDIX C 
Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements 

 
JAQUITH PARK ESTATES 

Tax Lots 3218AD-7621, -7633, -7634  

 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 44



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 29   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

APPENDIX C 
Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements 

 
JAQUITH PARK ESTATES 

Tax Lots 3218AD-7621, -7633, -7634 

 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 45



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 30   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

APPENDIX C 
Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements 

 
GRAHN PARTITION PLAT P 95-89 

Tax Lots 3218DB-2300, -2600 
 

 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 46



 
College Street LID Engineer’s Report  Page 31   
O:\Engineering\shared\Council Submittals\2013\Res13-3036_College St LID_Exhibit A_Rpt.docx          by Paul Chiu 1/29/2013 

APPENDIX C 
Waiver of Remonstrance Agreements 

 
GRAHN PARTITION PLAT P 95-89 

Tax Lots 3218DB-2402, -2403 (Parcels 2 & 3) 

 
 

Exhibit "A" to 
Resolution No. 2013-3036

Page 47



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 48



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2013-3034 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 19, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution   XX    Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2013-3034 

SUBJECT:  To reallocate funds from contingencies 
for payroll increases. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Janelle Nordyke 
Dept.: Finance 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2013-3034 for approval to reallocate amounts from contingencies to fund payroll 
increases as reflected in Exhibits “A” and “B”. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
During the budget process for fiscal year 2011-12 and 2012-13, the City’s non-represented employees 
received no cost of living or merit increases.  The City’s represented groups also shared in the cost-
cutting measures during fiscal year 2011-12, but were allowed to resume contractual cost of living and 
merit increases in fiscal year 2012-13.  The cost of living increases ranged from 2.9% to 3.9%. 
 
A segment of the Public Works employees established a union bargaining unit under AFSCME effective 
January 1, 2013.  The contract calls for a 2.5% cost of living adjustment for the first year.  This increase 
in cost was not anticipated in the 2012-13 budget process.  An adjustment to the personnel costs of the 
impacted funds is necessary. 
 
In an effort to deal fairly with all employee classes, the city manager is proposing a one-time 1% cost of 
living adjustment to be paid to non-represented employees during the latter part of the 2012-13 fiscal 
year. 
 
This resolution recognizes the increase in wages and benefits reflective of the Public Works union and 
the one-time 1% cost of living adjustment for non-represented employees.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The annual budget appropriation does not increase with this resolution, but reallocates $24,094.00 and 
$56,635.00 for Exhibits “A” and “B”, respectively, from the contingencies to the corresponding payroll 
lines of the affected departments for zero change in the total budget of $73,130,966.00. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
The adoption of this resolution will accurately reflect the activity of the City. 
 

Page 49



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2013-3034 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3034 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE TO REALLOCATE FUNDS FROM 
CONTINGENCIES FOR PAYROLL INCREASES 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The 2012-2013 Budget was adopted by Resolution No. 2012-3008 on June 18, 2012, by the City 

Council with no cost of living adjustments for non-represented employees at that time. 
 

2. Resolution No. 2013-3028, Public Works Collective Bargaining Agreement, was ratified by the 
City Council on February 04, 2013, allowing for a cost of living adjustment. 
 

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The City approves 2012-13 budget transfers out of contingencies as shown in Exhibit “A” to 

cover the increased cost of the ratified contract between the City and the Public Works 
Bargaining unit. 
 

2. The City approves a one-time 1% cost of living adjustment compensation increase for non-
represented personnel to be paid in fiscal year 2012-13. 
 

3. The City approves the 2012-13 budget transfers out of contingencies as shown in Exhibit “B” to 
cover the increased cost of the one-time 1% cost of living adjustment for non-represented 
employees. 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: February 20, 2013. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 19th day of February, 2013. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Recorder 

 
 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 21st day of February, 2013. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 
 

 
  

Page 50



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2013-3034 PAGE 2 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Resolution 2013-3034 

 
 
 

2012-13 2012-13

Annual PR Projected Financial

Fund Original Cost Impact

Street 462,125          464,494          2,369             

Wastewater 1,373,999       1,383,703       9,704             

Water 1,201,638       1,208,416       6,778             

Stormwater 558,438          561,737          3,299             

Fleet 138,047          139,449          1,402             

Facilities 53,311            53,853            542                

  Total 3,787,558       3,811,652       24,094            

City of Newberg

2.5% COLA AFSCME Union

Effective 01/01/2013

 
 
 
  

Page 51



 
 
City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2013-3034 PAGE 3 

EXHIBIT “B” 
Resolution 2013-3034 

 
 

2012-13
2012-13 Projected 1%

Fund Base Cost COLA
General 

General Government 2,218            2,238            20                 
Court 80,238           80,964           726               
Police 1,192,841      1,203,648      10,807           
Fire 537,800         542,672         4,872            
Communications 55,926           56,433           507               
Library 699,235         705,574         6,339            
Planning 369,534         372,884         3,350            

Subtotal 2,937,792      2,964,413      26,621           

Public Works
Street 462,125         463,998         1,873            
Wastewater 1,373,999      1,377,242      3,243            
Water 1,201,638      1,205,677      4,039            
Stormwater 558,438         560,311         1,873            

Subtotal 3,596,200      3,607,228      11,028           

Administrative Support  Services
City Manager's Office 388,697         392,112         3,415            
Finance 414,846         418,492         3,646            
Utility Billing 149,254         150,564         1,310            
Information Technology 373,034         376,311         3,277            
Legal 432,282         436,082         3,800            

Subtotal 1,758,113      1,773,562      15,449           

Building 228,140         229,622         1,482            
Economic Development 13,767           13,868           101               
Emergency Medical Services 955,666         957,620         1,954            

  Total 9,489,678      9,546,313      56,635           

City of Newberg
1% Cost of Living Adjustment Non-represented 

FY 2012-13

 
 

Page 52


	City Council Agenda for 2/19/13
	Resolution No. 2013-3035 authorizing a construction contract for the Children's Library Remodel
	1/22/13 City Council Meeting Minutes
	Motion to continue the hearing for the 9th Street vacation
	Resolution No. 2013-3036 accepting the Engineer's Report for the College St LID
	Resolution No. 2013-3034 reallocating funds for payroll increases



